GRAVEYARDS OF DANVILLE
As in many old towns and villages a glimpse at the chronicle of the passing of the forebears whose lives forged our heritage can be found in its cemeteries and graveyards.  Quaint poetic epitaphs often tell us little of the everyday struggles of the people who cleared the land, fought the battles for freedom from tyranny, and in the process eked out the necessities of the simple life that is the foundation of our New England culture.  But for current and future generations locating, maintaining, protecting and visiting these final resting places offers that timeless and intangible bond that connects one generation to those that went before.

Danville has three public cemeteries:  The Old Meeting House Cemetery and the Centre Cemetery which are still being used today for burials, and Ye Olde Cemetery, established in 1740 when Danville (Hawke) was still part of Kingston, where the last know burial was in 1882.  Ye Olde Cemetery on the west side of Route 111A just north of the Old Meeting House is the most picturesque, and is preserved in the natural surroundings that date back to its inception.  The Reverend John Page, the first and only permanent minister of the Old Meeting House who died in 1782, gaining prominence for his selfless dedication to his congregation during the Tuckertown epidemic, which took his life as well, is the most prominent of Danville’s forefathers buried here.  However, there are several Revolutionary officers and soldiers resting here as well.
The Old Meeting House Cemetery lies to the east immediately behind the meeting house.  The earliest burial date on a headstone here is 1825.  Marble and granite are more commonly used for markers here than the slate used most frequently in Ye Olde Cemetery.  The Old Meeting House Cemetery is noted for its ornate iron gates with “Danville Cemetery” cast in the crest.

The Centre Cemetery is located on the corner of Route 111A and Hersey Road where 1823 is the earliest burial date recorded on a marker.  One of the first burials in Centre Cemetery ironically was for a beneficent citizen who donated the stones and labor for the surrounding stone wall, dying the evening he completed the job.
Danville has several private graveyards that Diane Howes of the Danville Heritage Commission was able to locate and record as part of the Commission’s ongoing inventory of Danville’s historic sites and places.  They include the Dimond graveyard on Colby Road, the Tewksbury tomb on Kingston Road, the Bagley graveyard, also on Kingston Road, the Collins graveyard on Pleasant Street, The Blake Road grayeyard, and the Olde Road graveyard behind what used to be part of the Eaton property.  The Danville Heritage Commission would be interested to know of, and include in the inventory, any other private or abandoned graveyards.  
